Answers to all RFP Questions 

Received as of 12/19/2003

#
Question
Answer
RFPMod

1.
RFP Section E3.0, Contractor Quality Control Requirements, Page E-1: The Contractor is responsible for the day-to-day inspection and monitoring of the Contractor’s work performed to ensure compliance with contract requirements.  The results of all Contractor quality control inspections conducted shall be documented on inspection reports and provided to the COR as requested.

Question:  As this is primarily a services project, please provide details regarding the type of day-to-day inspection and monitoring and inspection reports anticipated.
The intent of this clause was to ensure that the Contractor is monitoring its compliance to its methodology. NARA will be following the contractor’s internal monitoring activity.  

The contractor’s day-to-day inspection and monitoring is adequate.
No

2.
RFP, H-4(b), Key Personnel, page H-2.  The Contractor agrees that during the first 24 months of the contract period, no key personnel substitutions will be permitted, unless such substitutions are necessitated by an individual's sudden illness, death, or termination of employment.  

Question: The base contract period is only 12 months.  It is quite possible that different skills will be required in key personnel during the System Analysis and Design phase (CLIN 0001) than during the Development phase of Increment 1 (CLIN 0101).  We suggest that this paragraph be amended to permit substitution of key personnel at the end of the first year of the contract.
No, per paragraph (e) contractor may designate additional key personnel. Per (c) and (d), substitutions are allowed with Government approval. If needed, Contractors may submit another person and a determination will be made as to whether the change is justified or not. The Government wants the same management from the Systems Analysis and Design Phase to the first Increment. NARA wants to keep key managers on board for 24 months unless they move to another company or something happens to them. 
No

3.
RFP, H-8(d), Organizational Conflict of Interest, Page H-6: The Contractor will be ineligible to participate in any capacity in contracts, subcontracts, or proposals thereof (solicited or unsolicited) which stem directly from the Contractor's performance of work under this contract unless the Contractor is the sole source;

Question:  If the Government selects more than one (1) contractor for the System Analysis and Design Phase, how would either of those contractors be eligible to participate in any of the subsequent Options / Increments with this clause incorporated as neither contractor would be the “sole source” of the preceding work?
The options are a part of this contract.  The OCI clause only applies to new NARA contracts. The ERA contract is one entity, and the Options are part of the contract. Exercise of an Option is not a new contract.
No

4.
RFP, Section H-9, Page H-7, Prohibition Regarding the Release of Information.  The Contractor agrees not to issue, release, circulate, publicize, publish, distribute, or disseminate in any way or fashion any information regarding this contract/program to the public or within its organization, subcontractors, consultants, and other government officials not directly working on this contract with out prior written approval by the CO.

Question: This section appears to prohibit the exchange of information in a manner that would hamper normal business operations. Wording such as “in any way or fashion any information regarding this contract/program” and “or within its organization, subcontractors, consultants” appear to prohibit the conduct of normal business.  For instance, it is a standard business practice for Contractors to report contract status to their Executive Management and Quality Management staff on a regular basis.  For Subcontractors working on the same project, there are similar company-internal requirements to provide status and progress to company personnel “not directly working on this contract”.  

The need to prohibit publicity / press releases without prior approval by the CO is understood.  The need to prohibit standard business practice is not understood and we request the Government reconsider the inclusion of this clause and substitute wording that enables Contractors / Subcontractors to comply with, and meet, the needs of both the Government and their own Companies.

Would the Government please clarify the intent of this section and would the Government also indicate their position regarding the Contractor's ability to perform normal business operations.
Corporate Executive Management and Quality Management who have a need to know the information during their normal course of business are considered to be working on this contract. The Government does not wish to interfere with internal company communications with individuals who are responsible for monitoring or decision making relative to ERA.
No

5.
RFP, J2, Requirements Document, 3.0 Requirements List, Page J2-40, "ERA16.1 The system shall accept electronic records transferred via physical media"

Question:  In our pricing of hardware for Increments 1 through 5, do we need to include pricing for the physical devices supporting each specific media type (tape drives, diskette drives, etc)?  If so, please specify the specific media types that we are to provide devices for in our hardware pricing, as well as the anticipated record volumes for each device relative to the total record volumes.


Exact mix of physical devices and related record volumes will be further explored in the Systems Analysis and Design Phase and as the ERA system becomes operational and agency agreements solidify.  Offerors should propose a mix of ingest devices showing media types currently allowed for transfer to  NARA, as specified at 36 CFR 1228.27(c),  and additional types recommended by the Offeror.  This is NARA’s regulations to other agencies saying what media they can use to transfer electronic records to the National Archives. Some of these medial are obsolete because Government entities continue to use equipment for sometimes substantial periods of time.  NARA assumes that in the future there are going to be additional media and form factors.

The proposed architecture should demonstrate scalability and extensibility in accommodating more and different media types over time. This is an open-ended requirement in that it goes to the SOO requirement that the system must be able to evolve over time. 
No

6.
RFP, Section J-2, Requirements Document, Pages J2-42 and J2-43, requirements 18.6.1 The system shall capture the reason(s) for the redaction and 18.8 The system shall provide tools for automated redaction of assets.  

Questions: 

1.  Does the redaction tool need to be included in the price or just included in the capability of our notional design? 

2.  If we need to include the tool, please define the level of automation required?
Offerors shall include the cost of all tools and capabilities in their proposed design.  The level of automation is design-dependent. While NARA would like the maximum return on investment, there are some things that are beyond current capabilities.
No

7.
RFP, Section J-2, Requirements Document, Table B-3, page J2-B-3

Question:  The Search and Status Check numbers in Table B-3 of the Requirements Document appears to require each concurrent user to be creating several searches or queries per second, and would result in several hundred concurrent searches at system initial operability.  This scenario outwardly appears unreasonable.  Is this a correct interpretation of this table, or is there supposed to be a rate term applied to these requirements?


Table B-2 supplies the average number of concurrent users.  Table B-3 uses this number to calculate the peak number of service operations to be supported.

Table B-2 provides requirements in terms of the rate of volume and the average number of concurrent users. Table B-3 addresses the system performance that we require for the system. In order to specify the performance environment, it is necessary to specify the number of users.  The average number of concurrent users is used to calculate the peak number of service operations to be supported.
No

8.
RFP, Section J-2, Requirements Document, Table B-3, page J2-B-3, note at bottom of the table:  * From initiation of query to start of display, exclusive of user environment and network delay.  System is assumed to contain 1,500,000 records and associated descriptions.  

Question:  The note at the bottom of Table B-3 in the Requirements Document indicates that the system will have 1.5 million records, but when used in conjunction with the data volumes of Table B-2, this give an average initial record size exceeding 2 GB.  This is difficult to imagine given the types of records we would expect to be archived by ERA.  Is the 1.5 million records correct for Increment 1, and if not can you tell us the estimated number of records and average size we are to expect during that increment?


With reference to the note at the bottom of Section J-2, Table B-3, the 1,500,000 records is an initial benchmark for performance testing.  It does not indicate a requirement in terms of what the later volume will be. Further benchmarks will be developed during contract execution.  

All proposed designs should demonstrate how system performance is maintained as assets increase.  The question of how Offerors deal with the variability of the size and volume of records is extremely important to NARA.

The average record size is unimportant to the records lifecycle data query being discussed. These queries are not directly made against record assets.
No

9.
Regarding  Attachment J-3 Down Select Criteria:  Para 1.1 is titled Factor 3 Cost/Price. It appears that this section should be titled Factor 1 Technical and that Factor 3 Cost/Price should be the last item in the list above section 1.1.  Please confirm.

Secondly, Para 1.3 references CDRL #17 (Monthly Status review) for the re-pricing activity.  It appears that the correct reference is CDRL #16 (Updated Cost/Price).  Please confirm.
These are both correct observations, and are editorial mistakes.  

Para 1.1 will be corrected and the reference to CDRL #17 will be corrected to CDRL #16.
Yes

10.
RFP, Section J-4, Contracts Data Requirements List, Page J4-5, ID 26, CLIN xxxx, Earned Value Management Data.
Question:  Does this requirement apply to all CLINs except CLIN 0001?   EVM data applies to cost reimbursable efforts and not fixed priced efforts.  Is this requirement correct or does it apply to all CLINs except CLIN 0001?  Please clarify.
EVM data is expected for CLIN 0001.
No

11.
RFP, Section J-4 CDRL, page J4-6, item #28 in the table under frequency states: “Submit completed form with Proposal.  Submit subsequent completed forms on a monthly basis, beginning three (3) months following contract award. To be delivered on thirteenth (13th) business day following the close of the developer’s fiscal month.”

Question:  What is the “form” referred to in this section?
The form referred to is the contractor supplied form for recording the CDRL #28 information.
No

12.
RFP, Section L5.0, Past Performance:  Each Offeror is required to submit the information for each relevant Government contract as well as the SW-CMM/CMMI compliance information 15 days prior to the date set for receipt of proposals.  

Section L, 52.215-1, Instructions to Offerors, (c) Submission, modification, revision, and withdrawal of proposals, (6), Offerors may submit modifications to their proposals at any time before the solicitation closing date and time, and may submit modifications in response to an amendment, or to correct a mistake at any time before award. 

Section L, 2.2.4, Page L-8, The Offeror shall provide a Proposal Master Cross Reference Matrix for Volumes I through III, indicating by section and paragraph the proposal or proposal attachment paragraphs that address a referenced RFP element.  

Section L, 2.3(c), page L-12, The Offeror shall provide the completed Proposal Master Cross Reference Matrix as an attachment to Volumes I through III.  This cross reference matrix is excluded from the page limit.

Question:  The instructions specify that the Past Performance Questionnaires (PPQs) and the CMM compliance information are due to the Government as a separate submittal 15 days prior to the due date of the remainder of the proposal, while the remaining part of the Volume, Organizational Structure Change History, is due with the regular submission of the proposal.  This fragments the physical volume and raises questions about submitting two physical volumes with partial information in each and labeling of volumes (such as Part I and Part II). 

Additionally, submittal of the Master Compliance Matrix and Master Table of Contents will be incomplete with the submittal of PPQs and CMM as we will still be working on Volumes I and III. 

Suggest that the Government consider:

1) removing Organizational Structure Change History from Volume III and adding to Volume II as a new section, and

2) removing the requirement for the Master Compliance Matrix and Master Table of Contents from Volume III entirely.
If those options are not acceptable, please advise how the Offeror should address the issues.
Offerors are to provide CMM level 3 certification letters and all past performance information 15 days prior to proposal submission in Volume III. 

Organizational Structure Change History is required as part of the Past Performance Volume. 

The compliance matrix for Volume III should be provided with the regular submission of the proposal.


Yes

13.
Re:  Section L. There are some inconsistencies in the General Instructions, para 1.3(b) of Section L says to send attachment in MS Office 2002 format and para 2.2.9 says "submitted in Microsoft Office 2000 (Word, Excel, PowerPoint)".  Which version of MS does the Government prefer—2000 or 2002 or was this intentional?
Section L, paragraph 2.2.9 will be changed to MS Office 2002
Yes

14.
RFP Section L, paragraphs 2.2.4 and 2.3 (d) require that Offerors submit a Master Cross Reference Matrix as an attachment to each of Volumes I through III.  Since Volume III is submitted two weeks prior to Volumes I and II, we suggest that the Master Cross Reference Matrix be included as attachments to Volumes I and II only, or that the delivery of the Volume III matrix be deferred until the delivery of the remaining parts of the proposal.
The Master Cross Reference for Volume III shall be provided independently as a separate attachment to the Transmittal Letter at the proposal due date.
Yes


15.
RFP, Section L.6.2, Page L-32, It is required that the Offeror provide a plan, by Contract Line Item, for integrating the PWS, CWBS, IS, labor hour estimates by labor categories, and bill of materials for each scheduled activity over the period of performance.

Question:  Please clarify this specific requirement.  Does NARA want a plan detailing how these various elements will be integrated in the future?  Or does NARA want an integrated product that has all of these elements delivered as part of the cost volume?
NARA wants an integrated product that has all of these elements delivered as part of the cost volume.

See comment ** on page L-11 for Table 2-1.
No.

16.
Due to the complexity of the technical solution required by the referenced RFP and the need to provide life cycle costs through the year 2020, we respectfully request an immediate 30-day extension to the due date of this RFP.


NARA will consider this request, but foresees no change in the due date at this time.  The due date was based on industry feedback received during the Prime System Integrator meetings on how long it will take for Offerors to submit proposals. NARA also considered the effects of the holidays. NARA has not recognized any significant issues in the questions and answers received to date, that require changing RFP requirements significantly, and therefore Offeror’s proposals need to be submitted on time. 
No.

17.
Please describe what specific steps NARA has taken to address Organizational Conflicts of Interest – beyond what is described in the RFP.
NARA has developed mitigation instructions and requirements for selected incumbents that in the CO’s opinion may possess information that would give them an advantage.  Those organizations have submitted corresponding mitigation plans for current contracts. 
No

18.
Under clause H-12 of the RFP, Notice to Offerors Regarding Deliverable Technical Data and Computer Software, Obligations Associated Therewith and Rights Therein, would NARA consider changing this clause to FAR 52.227-19 Commercial Computer Software Restricted Rights?  Also will the clause relate to major software products or ALL software products utilized?
NARA will not consider changing this clause to FAR 52.227-19. 

Clause H-12 is applicable to all software products utilized.
No

19.
Re: H-12:  While we understand NARA’s concern on receiving government purpose rights, obtaining those rights on COTS software will be difficult if not impossible. Obtaining source code will also be very difficult.
NARA understands there is difficulty in obtaining source code but NARA does not relieve the Offerors from this requirement.
No

20.
H-12 states that the special purpose rights for COTS products are for the Government mission, the ERA program and its successors.  Please confirm that the words “Government Mission” is the “Government Electronic Records Archiving Mission” and not the broader mission of the government (like defense missions or that of the other cabinet and agencies)
The clause is revised from “Government Mission” to “ERA Program Mission (including other agencies’ ERA related use) and that Program’s successors.”
Yes

21.
SOO Management indicator # 13 on page J2-7 says that the target cost per MB is $14.34 (and decreasing yearly). What and how are the costs consistent – e.g., 

· The system recurring & non-recurring costs through that point in time?

· Only marginal cost of each MB?

· Discounted value of the future costs for retention of each MB?
The number was intended to be per GB rather than MB.  However, this specific benchmark will be refined during the Systems Analysis and Design Phase.  Section J-1, page J1-7, Requirement ERA #13, Measurement Indicator, will be revised from MB to GB.

No

22.
RD Appendix B- Can you provide number of items expected to be archived or a breakdown of anticipated item size along with the total data volume shown in Table B-2?
Specific record size and number of records will not be supplied at this time.  NARA understands that the size and number of stored objects has direct impact on system performance, however the Offerors should demonstrate in their proposals how their architectures react to and can be tuned to accommodate varied record sizes and volumes.  The number and sizes of records will change over time and NARA is interested in seeing how the Offerors’ architectures will accommodate variations in record sizes and volumes.
No

23.
The total volume of data retrieved annually from the archive (RD Table B-2) is between 25% and 50% of the total volume of data stored.  This is very high for a traditional archive.  What fraction of these retrievals is expected to be duplicate data?
Offerors’ proposals shall demonstrate how the Offerors’ architecture reacts to record request volume, how it deals with different record sizes, and how the archive is tunable to optimize distribution of newly arrived as well as archived records.    
No

24.
Follow up to question 8:  

Given that the correct interpretation of RD Table B-3 results in about 20 concurrent searches, we can expect several thousand requests for retrieval per hour at peak rates, for a total of a few million request per year.  If this is applied to the data volumes of Table B-2, it results in average item size of several hundred MB. Are we to expect retrieval volumes of this size, or should we expect a larger number of smaller volumes? How many retrieval requests are we anticipating per year?


It should be noted that in looking at Table B-3, the specifications for searching are specifically searching against descriptions of the records it holds, rather than the electronic records themselves. NARA anticipates that the descriptions at the Initial Operational Capability (IOC) will be very similar to the descriptions found today in NARA’s ARC system (which is available online).  There is a very small volume of data included in those descriptions. It does not map at all to the data volumes in Table B-2.
No

25.
Refer to Section J-8: Award Fee Rating—given that all the fee is in the award fee pool, will the government reconsider allowing the contractor to propose different adjectival ratings?  A good rating of 1% to 40% seems to be unrealistically low. 


No.
No

26.
Section J – Attachment 11.  Please provide clarification and expansion on the scope to be included in the following PWBS elements:  

· 1.6 facilities and sub-paragraph 1.6.3,  1.6.4 and 1.6.5

· 1.7.4 NARA Acceptance Test Infrastructure (Increment 1) and associated elements for other increments.

· 1.7.11 ERA Change Management (Increment 1) and associated element in other increments.


1.6.3 Developer Project Management (Facilities): Clarification: Project Management support unique to the completion of work defined in 1.6.4 and 1.6.5. 

1.6.4 ERA Real Estate: 

Clarification: Work associated with identifying and acquiring facilities to house ERA instances.

1.6.5 ERA Physical Infrastructure: 

Clarification: Work associated with building out facilities that house ERA instances.

1.7.4 NARA Acceptance Test Infrastructure:

Clarification: Hardware/software infrastructure and support for NARA's acceptance testing of developer's deliverables. NARA intends that the developer establish and maintain an independent test infrastructure for Government acceptance testing.

1.7.11 ERA Change Management (Increment 1): Clarification: Developer assistance to NARA PMO change management activities to promote acceptance of ERA by its users.

All the above apply to the corresponding PWBS elements for Increments 2 through 5 as well.
Yes

27.
Ref: Section J, attachment 14: Why does the Government feel the need to have performance reporting down to the 6th level of the WBS?  
NARA has provided the top levels of the Program WBS.  Contractors should tie into that and decompose it to whatever depth is necessary to define the work.  In their CPR deliverables, Offerors should report at the sixth level of the PWBS, not the sixth level of their CWBS.  NARA needs this information to manage the program appropriately.
No

28.
Ref: L-6.2, first paragraph, “Offeror submit detailed … designated in FAR 15.4 as certified cost or pricing data”  Do you intend for the data prepared per FAR 15.4 to be officially certified in the price volume submittal?
Yes.  All pricing data is to be certified.
No

29.
Will you be releasing ALL questions and answers from the Bidders’ Conference as formal answers?
Yes. Questions and Answers from the Bidders Conference will be published on the ERA website. Other questions submitted by Friday 12/19/2004 will also be answered and posted to the ERA website.  Any answers that affect the RFP will formally be included in an amendment to the RFP. 
No

End of Questions From Bidders Conference



30.
Reference: Section A

What is the probability that the funding level of the ERA program could change as a result of the January 20, 2004 Senate vote? How might this affect the procurement schedule for ERA?
NARA will not discuss budget issues.
No

31.
RFP, Section B.2, Page B-2, CLIN 0101AA:  CLIN 0101A states that it “Includes all labor (program management, analysis, engineering, development, documentation, communications, facilities, facility buildout, installation, deployment, all software maintenance, training development, change management, etc.) and materials (hardware, software, equipment, etc.) associated with development of Increment 1”  and CLINs 0201AA through 0501AA states “Includes all labor (program management, analysis, engineering, development, documentation, communications, facilities, facility buildout, installation, deployment, all software maintenance, training development, etc.) and materials (hardware, software, equipment, etc.) associated with development of Increment 2”.  

Question: Although change management is in CLIN 0101A, it is not included in the list of functions to be included in CLINs 0201AA through 0501AA.  Is it correct to assume that Change Management is also to be provided in these CLINs?
Assumption is correct; CLINs 0201AA through 0501AA will be updated to reflect inclusion of change management.
Yes

32.
Reference Section B Supplies, Services and Price:

Can you share your out-year budget planning (by increment) with us, as available dollars in the out years will be one of the principal drivers as to how many new features and how much new technology can be delivered, and in what increment?
NARA will not discuss budget issues.
No

33.
Section B lists the year to year pricing as Increments, but there doesn't seem to be any functionality assigned to them, as one would expect from reading the SOO. Maybe they just are calling the basic contract and option years INCREMENTS.
See Target Release Plan (TAR).
No

34.
The RFP states that the acceptance criteria for the CLINS are stated in the CDRL.  The CDRL does not have this information listed.  When will the acceptance criteria be identified?
With the exception several CLINS involving financial reporting, offerors are to provide format and content of all CDRLs.
No

35.
Reference: Section B.2, p. B-2, Option 1 of the CLINS; Attachment J-1, Statement of Objectives, Section 5.2, pp. J1-3,4, NARA Increments

Within CLIN 0102AA, Operations & Support, the government stipulates "Startup activities to prepare for operations and support of the ERA Operational System. Period of Performance is 24 months from exercise of Option 1." In the Draft RFP, the Period of Performance for this activity was 18 months from the exercise of Option 1. Section 5.2, NARA Increments, the RFP states "For Increment 1 a minimum of three (3) releases are required."

Option 1 is scheduled to run for 24 months and a minimum of three releases are required. The period of performance for operations and support should start, at most, 6 months after the exercise of Option 1. We assume that systems and some functionality will be deployed with one, two or all three releases within Increment 1 and that a level of operational support will be required. As currently stated, offerors cannot begin to plan for operations and support until the IOC has been deployed, which seems to be much too late. Is this a correct interpretation of the RFP requirements? Please clarify.
This is an incorrect interpretation of the RFP.  CLIN 0102 allows O&S startup to initiate at the beginning of Option 1.
No

36.
Reference:  G-9 EVMS Assessment and G-10 EVMS IBRs

Request that NARA consider the following wording change to the contract administration data.  These recommended changes are more consistent with typical EVMS Assessments and Integrated Baseline Reviews.  Most, if not all, of the bidders have EMVS processes that are monitored on a routine bases by other Government agencies such as DLA which should provide adequate assurances that their systems comply and are followed in accordance with EIA standards.

G-9 Earned Value management System (EVMS) Assessment

On an annual basis, the Government may conduct a monitoring session and perform an assessment of the developer’s EVMS.  For up to 14 business days per fiscal year, at a time mutually agreeable to both the Government and the developer, the developer shall make the appropriate staff, records, and data available to the Government for EVMS monitoring.  With the exception of the first review and if a contractor has an approved EVMS system and is monitored on an ongoing bases by an on site Government agency, subsequent reviews will not be required unless the contractor's EVMS process has been disapproved.  Contractor shall show evidence of approval of their EVMS process on an annual basis.  The goal of the monitoring will be to ensure that the developer’s EVMS processes are being followed and that those processes comply with EIA Standard EIA- 748-A, Earned Value Management Systems, January 2002. At the conclusion of each monitoring session, the Government will assess the results of its data collection, prepare a list of items that require correction or further explanation, and go over the list with the developer.  The developer will be responsible for correcting any instances where its EVMS process are not being following or when its EVMS processes are contrary to the EIA-748-A standard and ensuring that those instances are not repeated.
This provision will be changed as follows:

G-9 Earned Value management System (EVMS) Assessment

On an annual basis, the Government may conduct a monitoring session and perform an assessment of the developer’s EVMS.  For up to 14 business days per fiscal year, at a time mutually agreeable to both the Government and the developer, the developer shall make the appropriate staff, records, and data available to the Government for EVMS monitoring.  With the exception of the first review and if a contractor has an approved EVMS system and is monitored on an ongoing basis by an on site Government agency, subsequent reviews may not be required at the Government's discretion.  Contractor shall show evidence of approval of their EVMS process on an annual basis.  The goal of the monitoring will be to ensure that the developer’s EVMS processes are being followed and that those processes comply with EIA Standard EIA- 748-A, Earned Value Management Systems, January 2002. At the conclusion of each monitoring session, the Government will assess the results of its data collection, prepare a list of items that require correction or further explanation, and go over the list with the developer.  The developer will be responsible for correcting any instances where its EVMS process are not being following or when its EVMS processes are contrary to the EIA-748-A standard and ensuring that those instances are not repeated.
Yes

37.
Reference:  G-9 EVMS Assessment and G-10 EVMS IBRs

Request that NARA consider the following wording change to the contract administration data.  These recommended changes are more consistent with typical EVMS Assessments and Integrated Baseline Reviews.  Most, if not all, of the bidders have EMVS processes that are monitored on a routine bases by other Government agencies such as DLA which should provide adequate assurances that their systems comply and are followed in accordance with EIA standards.

G-10 Earned Value Management Systems (EVMS) Integrated Baseline Reviews (IBRs)

The developer shall make themselves available for up to four (4) mutually-agreed-upon Integrated Baseline Reviews (IBRs) per contract year.  With the exception of the first IBR review and if a contractor has an approved EVMS system and is monitored on an ongoing bases by an on site Government agency, subsequent IBR reviews will not be required unless the contractor's EVMS process has been disapproved. The purpose of the IBRs is to assess the adequacy of the developers Performance Measurement Baseline (PMB) and facilitate the ERA Program Director’s ownership of that baseline and management control of the contract.  The goals of the IBR are as follows:

a) Confirm the integrity of the PMB,

b) Foster the use of EVM as a means of communication,

c) Provide confidence in the validity of contractor reporting,

d) Identify risks associated with the PMB, and

Present revised PMBs to the NARA CCB for approval.
No, NARA reserves the right to conduct the IBRs on a quarterly basis. IBRs are unique to the program.  IBRs conducted for other agencies are not relevant to this contract.
No

38.
RFP, H-5 Security Requirements, 5th paragraph, page H-4.  This paragraph states, “Staff required for this phase must possess current Single Scope Background Investigations at contract award.”  

Question: We interpret this to refer only to the two cleared personnel mentioned in the preceding sentence, and not to all staff assigned during the base contract period.  Is this correct?
Assumption is correct
No

39.
Reference:  H-5 Security Requirements:

This clause indicates the need for “2 personnel cleared for TS/SCI access” to take part in the System Analysis and Design Phase of the project.  Does NARA expect the contractor to provide TS/SCI personnel during the other phases of the contract?
Yes, NARA expects contractors to provide cleared personnel when required.
No.

40.
Reference:  H-5 Security Requirements:

Please provide access to the following NARA documents listed in the above reference:

NARA 202, Information Security Manual

NARA 804 Security Directive

NARA IT Security Handbook
These documents will be provided directly to the Offerors.
No.

41.
Special Contract Requirement H-5, Security Requirements, identifies several statutory/regulatory items with which the unclassified instances must comply.  We request that the following three be made available to the Offerors:  
    15.    NARA 202, Information Security Manual;
    16.    NARA 804 Security Directive; and
    17.    NARA IT Security Handbook.
These documents will be provided directly to the Offerors.
No

42.
Section H-9, Page H-7: Does this prohibition prevent the awardee from using the ERA contract as a past performance reference on future Federal Government solicitations (outside NARA)?
No
No

43.
RFP, H-12 Notice to Offerors Regarding Deliverable Technical Data and Computer Software, Obligations Associated Therewith and Rights Therein, pages H-8 through H-10.
Question:  Under current Government policy, the Government should generally acquire COTS software under standard COTS licenses.  Please provide the Offerors with a precise statement of Government requirements with respect to COTS.
Contractors shall acquire COTS products in compliance with Clause H-12.  
No

44.
RFP, H-12 Notice to Offerors Regarding Deliverable Technical Data and Computer Software, Obligations Associated Therewith and Rights Therein, 3. Escrow Arrangements, page H-10.  Near the end of this paragraph, it states, “the last deployed version of the source code incorporated into the ERA system related and documentation.”  

Question: We believe this should read, “… into the ERA system and related documentation.”  Is this correct?  If not, please explain what is meant by “… system related and documentation.”
NARA agrees to revise item 3 Escrow Arrangements on page H-10 to read “… into the ERA system and related documentation.”
Yes

45.
Paragraph H-12 of the RFP requires offerors to obtain data rights and escrow agreements from commercial software vendors that, as the NARA ERA Contract Officer acknowledged at the Bidder's Conference, are almost if not completely impossible to obtain.  Due to the short time remaining prior to the date of bid submission, and the fact that these are new requirements not in the Draft RFP, will NARA allow contractors to propose these commercial products as a part of their solution with the understanding that the offeror and NARA would approach these vendors in partnership during the first Phase of the performance to obtain these rights?
This is an inaccurate statement.  NARA CO did not state that obtaining data rights was impossible.  The CO quoted an Offeror’s question verbatim and was not providing an answer.

a. NARA anticipates that Offerors will propose the needed commercial products as a part of their technical solution. It is required that Offerors include the cost associated with the required rights in the Offers bill of material, bases of estimates, etc. included in the Offerors Cost Volume.

b. NARA anticipates that Offerors (Prime System Integrators) will obtain the required rights for commercial products. 
No

46.
Section H-12, Notice to Offerors Regarding Deliverable Technical Data and Computer Software, Obligations Associated Therewith and Rights Therein

This provision significantly alters the rights in technical data and computer software that is clearly supported in FAR 52.227-14, Rights in Data. While we understand the Government’s concern with future unsupported commercial software, obtaining unlimited rights to this data and obtaining source code from vast majority of the commercial vendors and owners of that commercial software, may likely be either extremely costly or impossible to obtain.  Even if the Government were to be able to obtain the commercial source code, it would represent a significant risk to the program if the Government or the Contractor needed to make changes to that source code.  Modifications to commercial source code typically results in high risk that changes might seriously impact the functionality of that software thus causing greater problems.  Due to these issues, it has been our experience that even when the Government obtains the necessary rights and source code, the solution to obsolesce is replacement of the functionality with a new commercial product rather than modification of the obsolete product.  We recognize that the requirement for preservation of the records is of paramount importance but we believe that preservation is best achieved by requiring the Contractor to develop architecture and resulting ERA system that preserves the records independent of any software and hardware product.  It is recommended that the Government not modify the existing data rights FAR provisions and instead, require the contractors to develop an architecture that addresses the root cause of the Government’s concern in this area.
NARA understands the issues with making changes to a producer’s source code. NARA understands that, the solution to obsolesce is replacement of the functionality with a new commercial product rather than modification of the obsolete product. NARA is requiring that Offerors develop architecture and resulting ERA system that preserves the records independent of any software and hardware product.  However, NARA believes it is in the Government’s best interest to obtain these rights up front. 


No

47.
Comments made at the Bidders Conference indicated that NARA had examples of the use of Rights in Technical Data and Computer Software as specified in the RFP.  Can NARA provide examples of the use of this language from other solicitations so that we demonstrate this to our vendors.
No
No

48.
Reference: Attachment J-14, Integrated Schedule, Data Item Description, Paragraphs 1 and 7; Section H, Paragraph 12, Notice to Offerors Regarding Deliverables/Technical Data and Computer Software, etc. 

Does NARA have or know of any US Government escrow account arrangements with Microsoft, CS Solutions, Oracle, IBM, or other large vendors for maintaining current versions of their source code and all associated documentation? Will they be made available to the ERA program? If so, please identify these accounts and the annual maintenance process for those accounts.
No
No

49.
Section I, calls for the inclusion of FAR 52.215-10 and 52.215-12 for Cost Only.  This solicitation seems to meet the rules for exemption of Cost and Pricing Data as set forth in 15.804 which says in part:

 (c) Standards for exceptions from cost or pricing data requirements--(1) Adequate price competition. A price is based on adequate price competition if--

(i) Two or more responsible offerors, competing independently, submit priced offers that satisfy the Government’s expressed requirement and if--

(A) Award will be made to the offeror whose proposal represents the best value (see 2.101) where price is a substantial factor in source selection; and

(B) There is no finding that the price of the otherwise successful offeror is unreasonable. Any finding that the price is unreasonable must be supported by a statement of the facts and approved at a level above the contracting officer;

(ii) There was a reasonable expectation, based on market research or other assessment, that two or more responsible offerors, competing independently, would submit priced offers in response to the solicitation’s expressed requirement, even though only one offer is received from a responsible offeror and if--

It seems appropriate for only FAR provisions 52.215-11 and 52.215-13 be called out in this solicitation.
Based on Clause 15.403-1(c),(1)(i)(A) (not 15.804) for exceptions from Prohibition on obtaining cost or pricing data – NARA has determined that obtaining certified cost or pricing data for this contract is appropriate.  
No

50.
Since the contract Section I contains the provision of FAR 52.216-7 and this provision allows for billing no more that twice per month, request that Section G.5(b) be modified to allow for biweekly invoices for the Cost Reimbursement CLINs 0101 through 0601.  
NARA requires contractors to submit billing monthly. 
No

51.
RFP Section I, Page I-8, 52.225-1 Buy American Act- Supplies.

Question: The dollar threshold for supplies on BAA is going to be well under what is going to be required for ERA - a major initiative program.   Will NARA consider replacing BAA with 52.225-5 Trade Agreements to reflect the proper relationship?
No.
No

52.
Reference:  Statement of Objectives, Clause 5:

Does NARA intend to provide test data for the prototype evaluation effort?  If so, will NARA provide any sensitive data?  If so, what level of data sensitivity does NARA expect to utilize?  Does NARA expect to provide sensitive data during Increment 1?
No test data will be provided for the prototype.  Sensitive data is not required for Increment 1.
No.

53.
In section J-1 paragraph 5.1 states “The output will be a System Architecture and Design Document (SADD), which will be presented at a System Design Review (SDR).  Each Contractor will develop a prototype of functionality for disposition/scheduling and template management. 

a) Can you please further define/clarify what NARA’s expectation of functionality of the prototype?  b) For example are you expecting a full working prototype, or screen mockups or models?  c) Are we to understand that the prototype functionality is only for disposition/scheduling and template management?
a) The functionality of the prototype will be determined during the Systems Analysis and Design Phase.

b) The extent and scope of the prototype will be determined during the Systems Analysis and Design Phase.

c) The minimum prototype functionality is specified in the RFP.  See CDRL #15
No

54.
RFP, Section J-1, Statement of Objectives, Page J1-7, ERA # 13, Estimated Baseline, $14.34.

Questions:  

1. Please confirm that data management cost on item 13, RFP page J1-7 was intended to be $14.34 per GB and not $14.34 per MB as written.  

When applied to the data volumes presented in Table B-2 of the requirements document, the resulting costs for Increment 1 using $14.34 per MB would be several billion dollars.  Over what term is the value to be applied?
The number was intended to be per GB rather than MB.  However, this specific benchmark will be refined during the Systems Analysis and Design Phase.  Section J-1, page J1-7, Requirement ERA #13, Measurement Indicator, will be revised from MB to GB.
Yes

55.
Reference: Attachment J-1, Statement of Objectives, p. J1-7, ERA #11, ERA #14; Attachment J-2, Table B-2, p. J2-B-2

How does information presented in the SOO Matrix correlate to Table B-2?  For example: 

1) J-1: ERA #11, Number of Customers is shown as from 650K to 2.9M; Table B-2, Average Number of Concurrent Users is shown as from 40 to 344. With 650K customers would there be only 40 concurrent users? Likewise, with 2.9M customers, would there be only 344 concurrent users? 

2) J-1: ERA#14 shows increases of 5% per year; Table B-2 shows Average Yearly Distribution Volume increases of significantly greater than 5%. 

Please clarify.
1)  Offerors are encouraged to read the explanatory note at the bottom of Table B-2:

Concurrent users are defined as the number of active sessions where archival system services are being exercised.  These services include but are not limited to obtaining records, record queries, status checks, and logins and authorizations.  The average number of concurrent users is the sum of all user activity across all instances of ERA.  

Concurrent users should be thought of as the number of active service invocations that must be supported concurrently/instantaneously at the ERA interface.  Peak service loads called out in Table B-3 are a function of these concurrent user loads and again speak to the number of simultaneous service invocations that must be supported.  

2)  Offerors are encouraged to research the concept of recall metrics to better understand ERA #14.
No

56.
RD section 1.5.1 has as supporting documents "Lifecycle Data Requirements Guide, Second Edition" which is the only document not available. The "ERA Life Cycle" document is available. Should the RD reference "ERA Life Cycle" rather than "Lifecycle Data Requirements Guide, Second Edition"? If not, will the "Lifecycle Data Requirements Guide, Second Edition" be released?  
First question:  No, however ERA16.1.1 calls for ERA to be able to coordinate ingest media for electronic records and the tracking thereof.

Second question:  The ERA requirements are contained in the RD.  How/when legacy systems are retired over time is an ongoing analysis within NARA that will eventually involve the contractor, but the Target Release Plan outlines the current NARA thinking in this area.    
No

57.
Will the automated records management system be required to store an initial physical location for non-electronic records?  The requirements document, page J2-2 states “ERA will not track non-electronic records.....".  Is it NARA’s intent to have ARC reengineered into ERA or will it continue as a parallel system?
First question:  No, however ERA16.1.1 calls for ERA to be able to coordinate ingest media for electronic records and the tracking thereof.

Second question:  The ERA requirements are contained in the RD.  How/when legacy systems are retired over time is an ongoing analysis within NARA that will eventually involve the contractor, but the Target Release Plan outlines the current NARA thinking in this area.    
No

58.
Are subscribers (those placing records into the archive) ultimately responsible for the reliability and durability of the original data records? Ref: J2-5.
ERA does not change the Archival responsibilities of record producers.  
No

59.
Please define “strong authentication” as is meant in section 2.7.4 on page J2-19
NARA will evaluate the techniques and technologies proposed by the contractor in all technical areas of ERA design, not the least of which is security.  Contractors are encouraged to demonstrate their understanding of current robust security technologies in their proposals.  
No

60.
RFP, Section J, Attachment 2, 2.7.6 Access, page J2-20, 3rd full paragraph on the page (beginning with “ERA will support…”

Question: The first sentence states, “…to identify potentially access restricted information…”   The meaning of this phrase is not clear; please clarify.
See RD requirement ERA13.5 (page J2-37), and glossary definition of access restriction.
No

61.
On Page J2-19 section 2.7.6 what “other assets” are being referred to in the first section of that paragraph?
As per the glossary, assets are “The complete set of information available within ERA”.   This includes but is not limited to all records, descriptions, disposition agreements, templates, etc.  The contractors should demonstrate through their proposed design the flexibility of their storage, searching, and retrieval architecture as it relates to any information being stored.  
No

62.
What type of “user” is envisioned as a creation agent for forms in requirement ERA2.6.1?
This should not make a difference in the Offeror’s design.  
No

63.
Is there an existing identity management approach or should ERA supports its own identity solution for user information related to ERA? 
It is the responsibility of the Offeror to define how users will be identified.
No

64.
Can NARA provide any more level of detail regarding the system interfaces, such as which financial, billing, subscriber management systems will be used in support of ERA?
Further definition of the interfaces will be provided following contract award.  
No

65.
Are there any estimates to the number of system subscribers ERA will support on a year-by-year basis?
No, but the contractors should demonstrate how their proposed designs are easily scalable and tunable to future growth with regard to subscription loads.
No

66.
What is an electronic record?  In the glossary it is defined as “A record in a form that only a computer can process.”  Does it include analog audio and video tape and if not, how does NARA justify the 3.58 petabyte storage requirement?
Electronic Record is defined as is within the glossary and does not require further definition.  This definition does not include analog audio and video tape.  The storage requirement stands as stated.
No

67.
Do we need to ingest analog audio and video tapes?
No
No

68.
What standards are in place for preserving the various forms of video and audio recordings?
ERA must be able to process and preserve electronic records.  Currently, no standards have been defined by NARA in this area.
No

69.
Will video be streamed at an appropriate bit-rate for web delivery?  What are the standards associated with video compression algorithms?
Distribution methods for various supported data types will be explored in detail during the Analysis and Design phase.  The contractors should demonstrate via their proposed design how new and different distribution methods can be supported over time.  
No

70.
To what extent shall order fulfillment allow various/many media types for delivery of records requests?  For example, CD, DVD, cartridge tape, etc.
Distribution methods for various supported data types will be explored in detail during the Analysis and Design phase.  The contractors should demonstrate via their proposed design how new and different distribution methods can be supported over time.  
No

71.
Is a template a description of the composition of an electronic record (i.e. an XML schema that will be validated against a submitted record), or is it a blank “form” that a producer will complete that will contain metadata for a given record or set of records?
Please refer to the Introduction to Policies, Templates, and Requirements Concepts (TEMP) GFI paper.
No

72.
Is NARA responsible for both modified/redacted copies and original content?  Who is responsible for any changes made to the original record?
Yes, NARA is responsible for both copies.  NARA does not change original records.
No

73.
Is it NARA’s intent for ERA to retain the original version of the software that was used to generate the original record (e.g., word processing software, e-mail software)?
This is left to be resolved by the Offerors’ proposed design.  See the Preservation and Access Level Concept Paper.
No

74.
What facility infrastructure is NARA providing to ensure that Archives II, St. Louis (Official Military Personnel Files), Presidential Libraries, and Federal Record Centers can serve as an appropriate site? Is the prime system integrator responsible for providing backup generator capability at these sites for example?
The sites are only provided for costing.  Specific infrastructure is proposal and design dependent.


No

75.
Comment:
Requirement ERA1.5.9 sets a standard for records destruction “such that the electronic records cannot be recovered”.  However, there are levels of “destruction” with significant cost consequences.  There is deletion using standard commercial methods available in COTS products where data recovery is not possible using commercial methods available to end customers, there is deletion proved against protected recovery techniques available only to the recording technology manufacturer, and ultimately there is media destruction.  The DoD 5220.22-M standard methods may effectively destroy data storage media units as whole beyond further re-use, effectively forcing data migration of all other data on a storage volume any time even one byte on a storage volume is to be destroyed.  If deletion is considered as a process, then a much less costly ConOps is deletion against commercial method recovery, eventually to be followed by non-destructive manufacturer-level deletion of against the whole media unit when all data on the storage volume can be deleted, followed by possible re-use of the media.
Question:
Please provide clarification of the data recovery threat, challenge, or standard against which “records cannot be recovered”.
The destruction of electronic data must be in compliance with the Federal Standards/Guidance appropriate to its level of sensitivity.  Requirement ERA 1.5.9 has clearly defined the requirements for destruction of electronic records and will be further decomposed during Systems Analysis and Design.
No

76.
What is the desired preference for number of copies of original records for permanent archive?   ERA 10.1.4
There is none.
No

77.
What storage medium is desired or preferred for the copies of the electronic records.
This is to be determined by the Offerors’ proposed design and further refined during Systems Analysis and Design.
No

78.
Reference: Section 6.7.2, Concept of Operations; Requirements Document, ERA22:

Do all ERA users require accounts? For example, can the general public conduct general research using an anonymous login? ERA22.1.3 refers to “…registered user(s).” Does this imply the existence of unregistered users?
ERA is policy neutral.  When and under what circumstances ERA users require accounts are policy decisions.  The ability to support registered and unregistered users is envisioned at this time.
No

79.
Comment:

RFP Section J Attachment 2 requirements ERA10.2.1 and ERA10.2.2 calls out the import and export of “self-describing media”, and ERA12.3 calls out the use of “storage media that is self-describing”.  Section J-2-A gives a definition of “self-describing” that does not contain a reference to storage media.  There several possible interpretations of the cited requirements that could affect the design of the ERA application-level information content and its physical layout on some given storage media unit, and possibly hardware aspects of the recording and media technologies.  Desired end purposes or functional objectives that might provide clarification of the issues for which “self-describing media” is a solution are not given in the J-2 background text.  .   

Question:

Please provide the problem issues and desired end purposes or functional objectives for which “self-describing media” is a required technology or system design solution.
ERA will, by its nature, need to be evolvable in terms of storage technologies and architecture.  Requirements on self describing media are there to support evolvability and maximize flexibility in the use of new and different COTS products.   
No

80.
The National Academies submitted a letter to NARA on October 16, 2003 concerning ERA.  These questions are identified below.  What are NARA’s responses to these questions?

ERA 1.28 should include a requirement that record transfers can be integrity-checked (committee’s first report, Recommendation 4, p. 9 and p. 56). ERA 1.2 mentions authorization and ERA 13.7 mentions authentication, but these safeguards are distinct from integrity-checking.

Protection should be provided against human error and malicious insiders. Any request that would delete or permanently alter data in the archive should require confirmation by two or more separate humans who are authorized to act on the request, a requirement that is not in the current RD.

ERA 13.4, “The system shall support virus detection,” and ERA 13.5, “The system shall support virus elimination.” How will the system handle a record that appears to include a virus? Is the virus part of the record? Whose responsibility is it to deal with embedded viruses—NARA’s or the end-user’s?

ERA 13.8, “The system shall provide for backup of ERA.” How does this requirement relate to the deployment strategy of “safe stores”? Is such backup in addition to safe stores, or do safe stores meet this requirement?

ERA 14.5, “The system shall use templates to check the authenticity of transferred electronic records.” This requirement is unclear, given the use of the vague term “template.” What information contained in a template can be used to check authenticity? How? Also, it might be better to require simply that the authenticity of records be checked and leave it to contractors to develop a suitable approach.

ERA 18.10.2, “The system shall output certified copies of electronic records in formats selectable by the user from available choices.” What is a “certified copy”? Will these copies be electronic files “signed” by NARA? Is the contractor being asked how to certify copies and how to record such certification?

ERA 21.1, “The system shall register users.” This requirement appears to imply that access cannot be anonymous. Is this necessary or desirable?

RD, section 2.7.4 second paragraph. The term “non-repudiation” is used incorrectly here (either that or the committee misunderstands the paragraph).
NARA has received input from many sources over the last year, including the National Academy of Sciences.  The ERA program has made adjustments to the Requirements Document where deemed appropriate based on all inputs received.
No

81.
The RFP and the RD talk about ERA interfacing with both internal and external systems.  How many systems are there and when will we have Interface Requirements Specifications for those interfaces?
RD Section 2.1 qualitatively describes the types of interfaces ERA will need to support. An initial IRD for these interfaces is expected to be provided to the contractors at contract award.  
No

82.
In reviewing the Average Number of Concurrent Users specified in Appendix B: Requirements Tables, Table 2, the average number of users seems very low given experience with other public websites.  A low-end server can support this number of concurrent users.  Is this approach consistent with NARA’s vision for ERA?
Offerors are encouraged to read the explanatory note at the bottom of B2:

Concurrent users are defined as the number of active sessions where archival system services are being exercised.  These services include but are not limited to obtaining records, record queries, status checks, and logins and authorizations.  The average number of concurrent users is the sum of all user activity across all instances of ERA.  

Concurrent users should be thought of as the number of active service invocations that must be supported concurrently/instantaneously at the ERA interface.  Peak service loads called out in Table B-3 are a function of these concurrent user loads and again speak to the number of simultaneous service invocations that must be supported.  

Types and sizing of system components is left to the contractors to propose and is design dependent.
No

83.
Table B2 in the RD lists the average number of concurrent users and defines a concurrent user.   It appears that this definition does not include NARA personnel who are performing the ingest processes of tracking, describing, cataloging, etc. (the archivists?)  Is there an estimate of the number of these operators of the system, since presumably they will be using system resources at the same time others will be accessing system services.   This will affect the demand placed system resources.
Table B2 includes NARA personnel.

Offerors are encouraged to read the explanatory note at the bottom of Table B2:

Concurrent users are defined as the number of active sessions where archival system services are being exercised.  These services include but are not limited to obtaining records, record queries, status checks, and logins and authorizations.  The average number of concurrent users is the sum of all user activity across all instances of ERA.  

Concurrent users should be thought of as the number of active service invocations that must be supported concurrently/instantaneously at the ERA interface.  Peak service loads called out in Table B-3 are a function of these concurrent user loads and again speak to the number of simultaneous service invocations that must be supported.  
No

84.
Reference: Attachment J-2, Requirements Document, Section B-2, Table B-2

What is the expected breakout for each of the ERA Record Volume entries by record type, file type, average record size, average file size, # of files per year, percent stored annually, etc?
Exact mix of record volumes by record type, etc. will be further explored in the Systems Analysis and Design Phase and as the ERA system becomes operational and agency agreements solidify.  Offerors should demonstrate in their proposals how their architectures react to and can be tuned to accommodate varied record types, sizes and volumes.  The type, number and sizes of records will change over time and NARA is interested in seeing how the Offerors’ architectures will accommodate variations in record types, sizes and volumes.

The proposed architecture should demonstrate scalability and extensibility in accommodating more and different record types, sizes, and volumes over time. This is an open-ended requirement in that it goes to the SOO requirement that the system must be scalable and evolvable over time. 
No

85.
Comment:
RFP Section J Attachment 2 Appendix B Table B-2 gives Average Yearly Transfer Volume.

Question:
Please provide the average yearly volumes (in Table B-2 form or other estimator method) of NARA-created records derivatives (i.e. redacted versions), metadata, lifecycle management, and other ancillary data associated with a preservation record set.  Please specifically breakout the volumes of metadata intended to be queried for searches as in Table B-3.

Question:
Are the NARA-created ancillary records volumes included in Table B-2?
NARA is not providing any further detail on ingest loads or their detailed breakdown at this time.  The volume of NARA created record derivatives, lifecycle data, and other ancillary data is design dependent and not included in Table B-2.

Specific record size and number of records will not be supplied at this time.  

NARA understands that the size and number of stored and derivative objects has direct impact on system performance, however the Offerors should demonstrate in their proposals how their architectures react to and can be tuned to accommodate variations in volumes.  The number and sizes of records and their derivatives will change over time and NARA is interested in seeing how the Offerors’ architectures will accommodate these variations.
No

86.
RFP Section J Attachment 2 requirements for the deletion and destruction of electronic records and associated metadata, lifecycle data, etc. per Federal, NARA, and DoD standards impose constraints on system concept of operations, system design, system hardware, and generate operational loads on system resources.  For a system the scale of the ERA such deletion and destruction activity could generate very substantial loads.  There are several possible ConOps for accomplishing deletion and destruction throughout such a large archive as the ERA, with a general trade-off between time to completion and cost.  Further, substantial deletion creates the possibility of re-use of data storage capacity with consequent economies.

Question:
Please provide estimates in the form of RFP section J-2 App. B Table B-2, or other estimator method of deletion and destruction activity for the CY 2007 to 2022 period.

Question:
Please provide guidance for the time-to-completion of deletion and destruction orders (time to destruction certification per ERA1.5.8).


NARA does not have an estimate for the level of record destruction activity that will be required.  

Time-to-completion of destruction orders will be further explored during the Systems Analysis and Design Phase.
No

87.
With no security specification required/listed in the Requirements Document, what are the standards for handling classified material?  Will the fact that ERA will handle unclassified as well as classified material mean that the records must be accepted, managed, and stored on two separate systems – i.e – separate hardware and software systems, with classified data communication networks, as well as secure storage systems?  Will classified material use existing secure networks? What special handling will be required for securing hardware systems?
These questions can be answered by referring to the following documents:

Section J Attachment 10, DD-254

ERA Design and Deployment Concepts (DDC)

ERA RD (ERA13.2)

With regard to secure networks and special equipment handling, NARA will evaluate the techniques and technologies proposed by the contractor in all technical areas of ERA design, not the least of which is security.  Contractors are encouraged to demonstrate their understanding of current robust security technologies in their proposals.
No

88.
Will NARA allow classified information/data to be transmitted via commercial carrier? Will NSA approve commercially leased lines for unsecure, sensitive, and top secret data?  Will encryption equipment be required to transmit classified information/data via commercial carrier?
NARA will evaluate the techniques and technologies proposed by the contractor in all technical areas of ERA design, not the least of which is security.  Contractors are encouraged to demonstrate their understanding of current robust security technologies in their proposals.  


No

89.
Will NARA coordinate with DISA and other federal agencies to define the requirements and provide the network specifications for a classified network?
No, Offerors are to provide network specifications for handling classified networks.  Note that these have been defined within the Federal Government.  
No

90.
For users who will be authorized to obtain classified records, will they have to work from a classified network – meaning there will be a need for secure facilities, workstations, telecommunications, etc.  What facility and equipment will NARA provide to work with classified records?
NARA anticipates providing no material or facilities to handle classified materials.
No

91.
Is there are requirement for hardware and services that will be used to process classified material to be TEMPEST certified?  TEMPEST certified equipment add significant costs and there is a serious questions as to whether TEMPEST certified servers will be available.
The contractors are to propose a complete solution to the security requirements of the RFP.  The final system solution is the responsibility of the contractor.   
No

92.
What kind of interface is envisioned between ERA and classified systems that will be sending data to ERA?
The details of such an interface will be defined following contract award and consistent with National Security Standards.
No

93.
Will ERA contain descriptions and cataloging information of classified records, and if so, will the descriptions themselves be considered classified?
Yes.  The description’s classifications will be dependent on the contents of the descriptions themselves.
No

94.
What special storage requirements are there for the storage of original classified records?  Will there be any need for special storage of redacted classified records?
The classification level of the records determines the requirement for storage.
No

95.
Does the Government expect the ERA to handle Atomic Energy classification in addition to the standard Confidential/Secret/Top Secret classifications? 

See http://www.usda.gov/da/pdsd/SecurityGuideEmployees/Classification.htm for background.
Please refer to Section L, 6.1.2
No

96.
What is the requirement for critical infrastructure protection per PDD-63?
ERA must comply with all applicable Executive Branch directives.
No

97.
RFP, Section J-4 CDRLs, Pages J4-4 and J4-5.  The CDRL list shows that the CPR and CFSR are submitted for all CLINs.  However, CLIN 0001 is anticipated to be fixed price.

Question:  Is it correct to assume that these reports are not applicable to fixed price CLINs?
No, these reports are also applicable to CLIN 0001.
No

98.
Reference:  Attachment J-4, Contract Data Requirements List (CDRL), Items 11 and 12

Section J-4, Item 11, requests the contractor provide a Security Plan "in accordance with NIST 800-18.  Must include appropriate Certification and Accreditation documentation IAW NIST SP 800-37."  Item 12 requires a Certification and Accreditation (C&A) Plan "In accordance with DoD Information Technology Security Certification and Accreditation Process (DITSCAP)."  Please clarify the use of DITSCAP within a civilian agency system. Does NARA require the contractor to provide a C&A plan for each level of classified documents?  Could the contractor utilize the NIST 800 series, plus DCID 6/3 where applicable, as the standard for all system security documentation?
The security CDRLs described in J-4 are required as stated.
No

99.
Attachment J-4 Contract data Requirements List:

· ID#16, Updated Cost/Price - The comments column, refers to all remaining CLINS 02xx – 06xx). We believe this should refer to all remaining CLINS (01xx – 06xx).  Please confirm.

· ID#19, CWBS – The frequency column indicates that this item is required monthly.  However, Attachment J-14 CDRL Data Item Descriptions:  Contract Work Breakdown Structure Data Item Description – paragraph 8, last sentence, states that the updated dictionary shall be submitted no more frequently than the CCDR report submissions.  There does not appear to be a requirement for a CCDR report.  Please clarify.  Concur that the CWBS is appropriate for a single submittal upon exercise of each option or as required to request authorization to modify the CWBS.

· Concerning ID# 22 - CPR, ID#23 – CFSR, and ID#26 – Earned Value Management Data-- it is not clear if these items are applicable to CLIN 0001.  It is recommended that these items only apply to Cost Type efforts and therefore are not applicable to CLIN 0001.
The correct reference to ID#16, Updated Cost/Price shall reference CLINs (01xx-06xx)

For ID#19 CWBS, the government expects the delivery of CWBS monthly. There is no CCDR requirement.  

For ID#22 – CPR, ID#23 – CFSR and ID #26 are applicable to CLIN 0001.
Yes

No

100.
Reference: Attachment J-6, Past Performance Questionnaire; L.2.3, Proposal Organization and Format:

The Government has placed a limit of five pages on each Past Performance Questionnaire. Currently, the Questionnaire itself is nearly four pages long. Will the Government allow Offerors to delete instructional verbiage from the Questionnaires to allow more space for description of the contract's relevance? This will provide evaluators with significantly more information with which to evaluate the citations.
Offerors are not allowed to delete instructional verbiage from the Past Performance Questionnaire.  However, the Offerors are allowed to provide 1 additional page to make the page count total 6.  Table 2-1 page L-11 will be revised.
Yes

101.
RFP Reference: Sections J (Attachment 6), L.5.1, and M.3.3 

Section L.5.1 states "Past Performance Questionnaires should be completed in accordance with the format contained in Attachment J-6. No past performance information shall be provided other than in the completed questionnaires."

1.
May offerors reformat Attachment 6 so that that complies with RFP font and margin requirements and incorporates the questions asked in Attachment 6, but increases the space available for responses to Parts G (Relevance), H (Problem Resolution), and I (Small Business Utilization)? 

2.
If we must use Attachment 6 as is, do the 4 pages of the form count against the 5-page limit for contract references?

3.
Section J, Attachment 6, does not provide places to address all of the Past Performance Evaluation Factors in Section M.3.3 (i.e., meeting cost and schedule commitments and maintenance of positive business relationships with customers). If offerors must use Attachment 6 exclusively, then where should these additional M.3.3 evaluation points be addressed?
1. No

2. Yes

3.  Section D. Brief Description of Effort, page J6-2. 


No

102.
Is the requirement for completed past performance questionnaires and an additional write-up for each contract? Or only one complete form per contract? 
One completed form per contract
No

103.
Attachment J-6 the past performance questionnaire does not provide a places to address all of the Past Performance Evaluation Factors in  Paragraph M.3.3. If there is no separate write-up, where should M.3.3 be addressed?
Section D. Brief Description of Effort, page J6-2.
No

104.
Section M.5.1 states "Past Performance Questionnaires should be completed in accordance with the format contained in Attachment J-6. Does this mean that we must use the electronic version of this form as provided or can we design our own form that incorporates the questions asked in Attachment J-6.  If we must use Attachment J-6 as is, do the 4 pages of the form count against the 5 page limit?
Offerors must use the form provided.  The form pages count towards the page limit.
No

105.
Attachment 8 to Section J, Award Fee Template

This is a follow-up question to one of the questions asked during the Bidder’s Conference concerning the Adjectival Rating.  We recommend that the Government allow bidders to propose changes to these ratings. The Government will have an opportunity to develop a common Award Fee Plan during the System Analysis and Design Phase. The common Award Fee Play would be repriced for the options.  Below is an example of adjectival ratings that address your situation where the base fee is 0%.

Adjectival Rating

General Definition

Excellent  (93-100)

· Contractor has exceeded better than acceptable performance by a substantial margin in all elements of the evaluation.

· Deficiencies are minimal or nonexistent.

Fully Satisfactory  (85-92)

· Contractor has better than acceptable performance by a substantial margin in most elements of the evaluation.

· Deficiencies are minor, relatively unimportant, and easily cured.

Satisfactory  (75-84)

· Contractor performance in the aggregate meets and in some cases exceeds the acceptable standards of performance over the elements of evaluation.

Marginal  (30-74)

· Contractor performance in the aggregate meets the acceptable standards of performance over the elements of evaluation.

Unsatisfactory (0- 29)

· Contractor performance is unsatisfactory over the elements of evaluation

· Deficiencies are pervasive throughout evaluation areas and not offset by areas of excellent performance.

These general definitions will be tied to metrics that will be measured during the each award fee performance period.
No, the Government will not allow Offerors to change these limits.
No

106.
In Section J-10, DD254, the due date in Block 2.c is 040119.  Shouldn’t this be 040128 to reflect the proposal due date on the SF 33 Cover Sheet in Section A?
The DD254 will be corrected to reflect the due date of “TBD.”
Yes

107.
Reference:  Attachment 10 to Section J, DD-254 Form:

Does NARA expect to provide Government Furnished Equipment (GFE) or Government Furnished Information (GFI) during the life of the contract?  If so, please provide information on the nature and quantity of GFE and GFI to be provided.
No GFE is planned.

GFI will be provided as necessary. 
No.

108.
Reference:  Attachment 10 to Section J, DD-254 Form:

Does NARA have any requirements for the contractor facility to be within the DC metropolitan area?
No, please see the ERA Design and Deployment Concepts Paper.
No

109.
Reference:  Attachment 10 to Section J, DD-254 Form:

The DD-254 included in the RFP requires facility clearance and materials storage at the Top Secret level.  In order to facilitate pricing and staffing, at what point in the project does NARA expect the contractor site to handle classified information?
This is covered in the Target Release Plan (TAR).
No

110.
Attachment J-10, DD-254 Form:  Block 13 lists two NARA documents for compliance.  Please provide these documents as listed below.

NARA Information Technology Security Handbook, March 2002

NARA Information Security Manual, 1994
These documents will be provided directly to the Offerors. 
No

110.
Reference Section J, Attachment 11 PWBS:

The PWBS does not provide for increment wide tasks during the implementation.  For example, it may be better to tie hardware procurements to an increment rather than to a release, since their procurement, installation and checkout may span releases.  Would NARA consider expanding the WBS, or allowing offerors to do so when appropriate?
Offerors may expand the PWBS, but not in the manner indicated.  It is important that all labor, hardware, software and other direct costs associated with each release be identified in WBS elements associated with that release.  NARA requires this in order to maintain consistency with its oversight reporting. Any expansions to the PWBS must be consistent with and not change the numbering of the current PWBS.  
No

112.
Regarding Attachment J-11 PWBS:

· This attachment identifies element 1.6 Facilities and sub elements.  These elements do not appear to be part of the A&D CLIN or any succeeding Increment CLIN.  Please clarify the description of this cost element and it’s association with the CLIN structure.  

· Elements 1.7.5 Increment 1 Analysis and 1.7.6 Increment 1 Release 1 both include analysis and design deliverables.  Please differentiate the deliverables for each of these elements.  This differentiation is needed for Increments 2-5 as well.

· Element 1.11.7 Increment 5 Release 2 refers to Increment 4 in the first sentence. We believe this should be corrected to Increment 5.  Please confirm.
· CLINs 0X01AA address facilities and facilities build out associated with each CLIN. 

· The difference between the two is the level at which the analysis is being performed.  The government assumes that analysis will have to occur at the increment level and that further analysis may be required at the release level.

· This will be corrected to reflect release 5
Yes 

113.
Attachment J-11, PWBS:

It is our interpretation that PWBS element 1.7, ERA Increment 1 – Initial Operational Capability, includes both subCLINs 0101 and 0102.  Is this interpretation correct?  If so, then a summary roll up WBS element for Increment 1 - Development, subCLIN 0101, only appears to be missing from the PWBS.  The summary roll up WBS element for Increment 1 – Operations and Support, subCLIN 0102, is included in the PWBS as 1.7.12, Operations, Support, and Maintenance (Increment 1).  The summary roll up WBS elements also appear to be missing for Increments 2-5.
No summary roll up WBS element for Increment 1-Development will be provided.  Mapping between CLINs and PWBS elements is the responsibility of the contractor.


114.
Section J-13, Paragraph 2.1.11.3, Test Bed Environment says in the last sentence “Hardware cost for the test environment should be part of the hardware costs identified in CE 3.1.2.3.”   Section J-13 ends with paragraph 2.3.1.2.  It appears that either there are CEs missing from Section J-13 or that the references within many of the paragraphs are incorrect.  There are nine (9) other CE paragraphs in J-13 with similar discrepancies.  Please clarify.
Attachment J-13 is revised.
Yes

115.
RFP, Section J13, Pages J13-1 through J13-5: Throughout Section J-13 there are references to CE 3.x.x and/or CE 3.x.x.x.  A specific example is Page J13-3, Section J2.1.11.3, “Hardware costs for the test environment should be part of the hardware costs identified in CE 3.1.2.3.”

Question: Where are the “CE” sections located in the RFP?
Attachment J-13 is revised.


Yes

116.
RFP, Section J13, Page J13-1:   Section J-13, 1.0 references the “total cost of ownership” (TCO).  No where else in the RFP is TCO mentioned.

Section L3.1.4, Page L-14, Life Cycle Cost – refers to Section J, Attachment 13.

Question:  Has the TCO in the draft RFP been replaced by the requested LCC to be included as an appendix to Volume I – Technical?
“TCO” is changed to “LCC. “
Yes

117.
What assumptions can be made about archival staffing now through the year 2020?
The Government will not provide this information.
No

118.
Regarding Attachment J-13 CEDD:  

· In order to estimate the NARA Staff cost in element 2.3.1.1, the contractor’s will require job position descriptions and pay scales in FY04 dollars.

· In order to promote consistent estimates of Personnel Support Costs in element 2.3.1.2, we recommend NARA provide a factor that can be used to relate the average annual cost for these expenses per staff member.
1. Pay scale used for all archival staff should the OPM 2003 General Schedule (Base), GS-13, Step 5. The exact annual rate per staff member is $69,419. 

2. The factor, or burdened rate, to be used for benefits / expense is 32.85%. This is to be calculated above the $69,419. 

The total cost per archival staff member (salary + burdened rate) equals $92,223. 
Yes

119.
Attachment J-13 CEDD:

We have generated a version of the CEDD structure based on the descriptions and filling in indentures as needed to fit the descriptions.  The structure is provided in the attached excel spreadsheet.  Is this structure the intended structure for the CEDD?  If so, and if J13 paragraph 2.1 is intended to roll up the investment cost associated with contractor performance prior to FOC, what is rationale for having the LCC CEDD structure prior to FOC (i.e. 2.1 and associated subparagraphs) different from the PWBS structure in Attachment 11?  We believe that this version of the structure will correct the reference problems with the structure in the RFP.


The CEDD structure provided is intended to normalize submission of offerors' LCC submissions in a format that is easily compared to NARA's LCC estimates. Since all Offerors will have different CWBS's, and since the CWBS's do not include deliverables for the entire duration requested for the LCC estimates, NARA chose not to use the PWBS or CWBS as a structure for the LCC.
No

120.
Reference Section J, Attachment 14 EVMS:

If an offeror has an advanced EVMS system integrated with its cost and schedule management systems, can it be used if it exceeds the capabilities of Microsoft Project 2003?  (If necessary, a copy of the EVMS system (a COTS product) could be provided to NARA.)
The Government does not require that the Offeror use MS Project for its EVMS system.  The EVMS system must be EIA 748 compliant.  The Offeror is required to adhere to MS Project 2003 as a delivery format for the appropriate CDRLs and proposal submissions.
No

121.
Reference Section J, Attachment 14 EVMS:

If an offeror has an advanced EVMS system integrated with its cost and schedule management systems, can it be used if it exceeds the capabilities of Microsoft Project 2003?  (If necessary, a copy of the EVMS system (a COTS product) could be provided to NARA.)
The EVMS system must be EIA 748 compliant.  The EVMS system does not need to be compatible with MS Project but the data must be delivered in the formats specified on Page J14-8.
No

122.
Does NARA expect two formats of the CWBS for both the Index and the Dictionary?  i.e. do they want the Index and the Dictionary (using a text field for descriptions) in MS Project 2003 as well as the Index and Dictionary in the DI-MGMT-81334 format/layout in MS Word?  Will reports from MS Project 2003 suffice as hardcopies for both the Index and Dictionary? (J14-1, #3)
Yes, reports from MS Project 2003 will suffice as hardcopies for both the Index and Dictionary.
No

123.
Reference:  Section J, Attachment 14, CDRL Data Item Descriptions and Guidelines, CWBS Data Item Description

Item 6) states that routine reporting for the purposes of completing the Cost Performance Report (CPR) shall be a CWBS level 6 for prime contractors and key subcontractors.  Please confirm that this level would be equivalent to the extension of the PWBS (Section J, Attachment 11) to 1.7.12.1.1.1 for example.  At the Bidder’s Conference it was indicated that NARA may really desire reporting at the third level of the PWBS.  The third level would be consistent with the reporting level we have on similar contracts.  The third level would be represented by 1.7.12 for example.  Item 6) also states that reporting for completion of the EVM data requirement shall be at the lowest level of the CWBS.   It would seem that the EVM data should be provided at the same level as the CPR.  Please clarify.

Item 3) states that the developer shall deliver the CWBS Index and CWBS Dictionary in both hardcopy and Microsoft Project 2003 “.mpp” format.  It has been our experience that CWBS Indices and Dictionaries are delivered in Microsoft Word format.  It is our understanding that the fields in Project are limited to 256 characters with the exception of the notes field.  Therefore, the notes field could be used for the dictionary descriptions.  Is this what NARA intended?  Otherwise, what module or add on features did you intend to use for the CWBS Index and Dictionary?
Yes, reports from MS Project 2003 will suffice as hardcopies for both the Index and Dictionary.
No

124.
RFP Reference: Section L, 52.215-1 -- Instructions to Offerors -- Competitive Acquisition (MAY 2001), Alternate II (OCT 1997), paragraph (c)(2), page L-2.

The RFP requires that the first page of the proposal show (i) the solicitation number; (ii) The name, address, and telephone and facsimile numbers of the Offeror (and electronic address if available); (iii) A statement specifying the extent of agreement with all terms, conditions, and provisions included in the solicitation and agreement to furnish any or all items upon which prices are offered at the price set opposite each item; (iv) Names, titles, and telephone and facsimile numbers (and electronic addresses if available) of persons authorized to negotiate on the Offeror's behalf with the Government in connection with this solicitation; and (v) Name, title, and signature of person authorized to sign the proposal. Proposals signed by an agent shall be accompanied by evidence of that agent's authority, unless that evidence has been previously furnished to the issuing office. 

Will this page be exempt from the page count restrictions? May we assume that this page is not the transmittal letter, but follows the transmittal letter?
This information should be included in the Transmittal Letter.
No

125.
Section L, Table 2-1 Proposal Organization:

Executive summaries of up to 10 pages can efficiently improve reviewers’ understanding of the proposed approach, features, and benefits.  This both accelerates evaluation and provides material for briefing decision authorities on each offer.


The requested proposal organization does not explicitly include an Executive Summary.  Is the Government willing to accept an Executive Summary of an offeror’s ERA proposal?  
No.
No

126.
RFP, Section L, 2.1.3 Price and Cost Information. All cost or pricing information shall be addressed ONLY in Volume IV, Cost/Price in Offeror’s proposal. Cost trade-off information, work-hour estimates, and types of material and quantities may be used in the Technical Proposal volume only as appropriate for presenting rationale for alternatives or design and trade-off decisions.   Section L, 2.3 Proposal Organization and Format Table 2-1; this table shows the Life Cycle Cost will be submitted as an attachment to Volume I Technical.  

Question:  Please clarify the two references which appear to be in conflict.
The LCC Estimate is to be provided in Volume IV. However, the qualitative description will remain in Section L, 3.1.4.  
Yes

127.
Page L-10, Footnote ** Please clarify the requirement for a redacted copy.  Basically, if no labor rates should be shown, we assume that also means no loading factors or proposed fees.  Therefore, the redacted copy boils down to the B tables without the award fees.  Is this understanding correct?   
The purpose of the redacted copy of the Cost/Price volume is to allow the technical team to evaluate the cost realism of proposals.  NARA expects the volume should be redacted such that all costing data is removed with the exception of hours bid by labor category by WBS.  
No

128.
Reference:  Section L, para 2.3, Table 2.1, double asterisk below the table. 

We expect that the purpose of the redacted copy of the Cost/Price volume is to allow the technical team to evaluate the cost realism of our proposal.  Therefore, it is our expectation that the volume should be redacted such that all costing data is removed with the exception of hours bid by labor category by WBS.  This will allow the technical team to review the effort proposed.  Please confirm that this is the proper interpretation.
Yes, this interpretation is correct.
No

129.
Section L, 2.2.3 limits cost information to Volume IV with the exception of cost support for alternatives or design and trade-off decisions.

Section L, 3.1.4 requires an estimate of Life Cycle Cost within the Technical Volume (I).

Normally, no cost/pricing information would be required in a technical proposal. However, with the inclusion of Life Cycle Cost estimates in the Technical Volume (I), cost information other than that allowed by 2.2.3 will need to be shown in Volume I.

Would the Government consider re-wording 2.2.3 to enable presentation of LCC information in the Technical Volume or moving LCC estimates to Volume IV?
The LCC Estimate is to be provided in Volume IV. However, the qualitative description will remain in the Technical Volume.  
Yes

130.
Life Cycle Cost description location in Technical proposal:

Page L-10 prescribes Life Cycle Cost Qualitative Description as Section 3. 

Page L-14 prescribes Life Cycle Cost as section 3.1.4 within Section 1.

A separate Section (3) for Life Cycle Cost discussions seems appropriate as an added topic covering a number of cost related items, in addition to the Technical Solution and Approach (Section 1).

We presume Life Cycle Cost Qualitative Description is to be addressed in Section 3 and not within Section 1.  Is that correct?
Interpretation is correct; the referenced section is changed to Section 3.  
Yes

131.
Section L:

There are several inconsistencies associated with the requirement for the Life Cycle Cost estimate.  The details of these are listed below.  Please clarify.

· Paragraph 2.3, table 2-1, indicates that the Life Cycle Cost estimate follows Section 3 of the Technical Proposal. This is in conflict with paragraph 2.2.3, which states that all cost or pricing information shall be addressed ONLY in Volume IV, Cost/Price.

· Paragraph 3.1.4 indicates that the Life Cycle Cost is described in Section 1 of the Technical Proposal. This is in conflict with paragraph 2.3, table 2-1, which indicates that the Life Cycle Cost is in section 3 of the Technical Proposal.

· Paragraph 3.1.4 indicates that the Life Cycle Cost shall be provided as an Appendix to Volume I, Technical proposal. This is in conflict with paragraph 2.2.3, which states that all cost or pricing information shall be addressed ONLY in Volume IV, Cost/Price.
Life Cycle cost is Section 3.  

The LCC Estimate is to be provided in Volume IV. However, the qualitative description will remain in the Technical Volume.  
Yes

132.
RFP Reference: Section L.2.3(a), Table 2-1; Section 3.1.4, Life Cycle Cost; and Section M.3.3.1, Subfactor 1, Technical Solution.

Table 2-1 lists Life Cycle Cost as a section separate from RFP Section 3.1, Technical Solution. Yet Life Cycle Cost is evaluated as part of Technical Solution per Section M.3.3.1.  Please confirm that Life Cycle Cost is not included in Section 1 of Volume I and instead is included in a separate Section 3 of Volume I.


Life Cycle cost is Section 3. 
Yes

133.
RFP Reference: Section L.2.3(c) & (d) and Section L.3.1.3(b).

The RFP specifies that the proposal cross-reference matrix is included as an attachment. It specifies that the Requirements Verification Matrix must be included as an appendix. May offerors standardize the terminology for the attachments/appendixes as either attachments or appendixes?


Yes
No

1354.
RFP Reference: Sections L.2.3(c) and L.2.3(d)

Section L.2.3(c) requires a Proposal Master Cross Reference Matrix be provided as an attachment in Volume I (as well as the other volumes). Because Volume I is submitted 15 days prior to Volumes II and III, it is likely that the Proposal Master Cross Reference Matrix references to Volumes I and II will change between the submission of Volume III and the submission of Volumes I and II. This will mean that the Volume III Proposal Master Cross Reference Matrix probably will be inaccurate by the time Volumes I and II are submitted.

a) Will the Government consider eliminating the requirement for a Proposal Master Cross Reference Matrix in Volume I and only require a Volume I cross-reference matrix for Volume I?

b) The same issue concerns the master table of contents required by Section L.2.3(d). Will the Government consider eliminating the requirement for a master table of contents in Volume I and only require a Volume I table of contents for Volume I?
a) The Master Cross Reference Matrix for Volume III should be provided with the regular submission of the proposal.

b) The Master Table of Contents is required. If it is necessary to do so, the Master Table of Contents for Volume III may be provided with the regular submission of the proposal.


No

135.
Section L, 3.1.3 (h), Use of Siebel for CRM software:

Does NARA plan to use Siebel Customer Relationship Management software for the ERA customer interface, or is the ERA application intended to interface with Siebel for different purposes?  
There is no ERA requirement to use Siebel, nor is there a requirement for ERA to directly interface to an external system via a Siebel API.  We expect the contractors to propose the most appropriate COTS products for their design.
No

136.
Siebel was mentioned in the RFP as part of NARA’s enterprise architecture and therefore potentially part of ERA.  Should this system be included as an external interface with ERA or as part of the larger ERA system?
There is no ERA requirement to use Siebel, nor is there a requirement for ERA to directly interface to an external system via a Siebel API.  We expect the contractors to propose the most appropriate COTS products for their design.
No

137.
NARA mentions Customer Relationship Management (CRM) software only once in the in RFP and CRM is not mentioned in the Enterprise Architecture while other products are mentioned in the Enterprise Architecture.  What are the essential elements of Siebel’s for Customer Relationship Management software that need to be incorporated into ERA?
There is no ERA requirement to use Siebel, nor is there a requirement for ERA to directly interface to an external system via a Siebel API.  We expect the contractors to propose the most appropriate COTS products for their design.
No

138.
RFP Reference: Section L.4.1.1(a).

The RFP requires offerors to “Indicate the roles and responsibilities of the proposed subcontractors and the rationale for the assignments; include a chart depicting these elements.” This offeror is unclear on the chart requirement. Please confirm that the chart is not the same as the organizational chart required by the main paragraph (L.4.1.1). Please define the “elements” that need to be depicted. 
The intent of L.4.1.1 (a) is to allow Offerors to provide additional detail as to subcontractor roles and responsibilities beyond that which would be presented in the main paragraph (L.4.1.1), and can include information about other subcontractors not designated as “major”. 
No

139.
The Integrated Schedule (IS) is a proposal deliverable.  The IS is further described in Section J14-3, 1 as consisting of three parts.  For the proposal deliverable, are all three parts expected or is the Schedule Quality Assessment to be omitted? (L-23, 4.2.1.4.2; J14-3, 1)
The Schedule Quality Assessment may be omitted in the proposal deliverable but is required as a CDRL deliverable during performance of the contract.


Yes

140.
Section L, 2.2.3 limits cost information to Volume IV with the exception of cost support for alternatives or design and trade-off decisions. 


Section L, 4.2.1.5  requires an Award Fee plan (with associated award fee details) 


Normally, no cost/pricing information would be required in a management proposal. However, with the inclusion of an Award Fee Plan, cost information other than that allowed by 2.2.3 will need to be shown in Volume II.

Would the Government consider re-wording 2.2.3 to enable presentation of Award fees in the Management Volume or moving the Award Fee plan to Volume IV?
The dollar value for the award fee must not be submitted with the Award Fee Plan that is included in the Management Volume.  
No

141.
RFP Reference: Section L.2.2.5 and L.2.3(d)

Section L.2.2.5 states that each volume shall contain a more detailed table of contents. The more detailed phraseology implies there is more than one table of contents required for each volume.

Is there a detailed table of contents required for each volume in addition to the master table of contents for all volumes as specified in Section L.2.3(d)?

If there are two tables of contents required per volume, where should the “more detailed table of contents” be placed within each volume?
Both the detailed individual volume table of contents and the master table of contents are required. The detailed table of contents for each volume should be placed in the front of that volume. Per, L.2.3 (d) the master table of contents should be an attachment to each volume.


No

142.
Section L, 4.2.2.4 12% goal for small business: 

Given likely sizeable costs for hardware and software in the increments, a 12% small business share based on services costs plus hardware/software costs results in small business being an appreciable portion of services (much more than 12%).

The instruction suggests that the total dollar value of any increment be used as the base for computing the 12% small business goal.  Did you intend to include in the increment “total dollar value” the cost of purchased hardware and software?
Yes.
No

143.
RFP, Section L, 5.0, Past Performance, page L-28.  Each Offeror is required to submit the information for each relevant Government contract as well as the SW-CMM/CMMI compliance information 15 days prior to the date set for receipt of proposals.

Section L5.1, Relevant Contracts, 1st paragraph, page L-28:   A recent contract is either a currently active contract on which …
Section L5.1, Relevant Contracts, 3rd paragraph, page L-28 : For each identified effort for a commercial customer …

Question:  These references provide assorted types of past performance references.  Please confirm that we may provide, as relevant past performance, current or recent commercial contracts and independent research and development (which may not be a contract), in addition to current or recent government contracts.
Offerors may provide information on commercial contracts or Independent Research and Development projects. 
No

144.
RFP, Section L, 5.1 Relevant Contracts, para 2, page L-28.  This paragraph contains the statement, "No past performance information shall be provided other than in the completed Past Performance Questionnaires."   The Proposal Format supplied as Table 2-1, on page L-11 shows a 2 page overview on past performance.  

Question: Our intent would be to discuss our past performance at a macro level in this introduction, highlighting many of our team's capabilities that might not be specifically addressed in the five submitted questionnaires.  Please confirm that this is acceptable.
Yes, this is acceptable.
No

145.
Section L, Cost/ Price, Page L-30, 6.1.1, Definitions:
1(c):  Activities to be performed during the operational phase of the Increment are termed Increment Operations. Increment Operations immediately follows completion of Increment Rollout and continues until the completion of the Increment Rollout phase of the subsequent Increment.   

Section F, Deliveries or Performance, Page F-1, 1.1.2 Option Years states the period of performance for each of the Options 2 through 6 is for 12 months. 

Question: 
These two sections appear to contradict each other.  Section F provides a period of performance of 12 months for options 2-6.  Section L seems to provide overlapping periods of performance (POP).  For instance, if Option 2's POP was January 1, 2007 through December 31, 2007 and Option 3's was January 1, 2008 through December 31, 2008 - then the timeframe would be in compliance with Section F (12 months).  But, if we performed Option 2's increment operations starting on June 1, 2007, the implication from Section L is that it "should" run through part of Option 3's POP (until Option 3's increment operations are ready to begin). 

Please provide clarification on the above Sections F and L.
Increment rollout is part of development and not part of O&S.
No

146.
Section L6.1.3, Assumptions for Numbers of Sites and Locations, Page L-31:  Increment 1


a.
Rollout - Single SBU site on the East Coast, Mid-Atlantic region.  


b.
Operations - Second SBU site at St. Louis (Official Military Personnel Files, dual site system configuration).


Question: Does "dual site system configuration" mean that St Louis and East Coast are each one site, for two sites total in Increment 1, in a dual-site configuration?  Or does it mean that there are two sites in St. Louis, acting as a dual-site configuration, plus a third site in East Coast, for a total of three sites in Increment 1?
Dual site configurations refer to the relationship between the first and second SBU sites. Please see the ERA Design and Deployment Concepts Paper for active safe store and dual site concepts and descriptions.
No.

147.
Reference: Section L-6.l.3 (1.)(b):

What is meant by “dual site system configuration”?
Dual site configurations refer to the relationship between the first and second SBU sites.  Please see the ERA Design and Deployment Concepts Paper for active safe store and dual site concepts and descriptions.
No

148.
Reference: Section L.6.1.3, Assumptions for Numbers of Sites and Locations, 1(b) 
NARA expects pricing of an initial deployment in the mid-Atlantic region with a second site in St. Louis "in a dual site configuration." Is this intended to be the safe store site? Please clarify.
Please see the ERA Design and Deployment Concepts Paper for active safe store and dual site concepts and descriptions.  

Both sites are to be considered safe store sites.


No

149.
Section L.6.1 and 6.1.3 indicates that we are to use the locations identified in 6.1.3 for costing purposes.  Are we to use these same locations for developing the total life cycle costs?
Yes
No

150.
Section L, Page L-32, 6.2 - Realism of Projected Cost of Work to be Performed - Offeror shall submit "certified cost or pricing data".  

Question:  Because the RFP also includes reference to FAR 52.215-20 Requirements for Cost or Pricing Data or Information Other Than Cost or Pricing Data, and anticipating that NARA will receive sufficient competition - will NARA consider an exemption from the submission of certified cost or pricing data based on competition and/or commerciality of the products and services?  If not - It is expected that Contractors will provide certified cost or pricing data only on the cost reimbursement CLINs of the RFP.      
Certified cost and pricing data is required.  Contractors must provide certified cost or pricing data on all CLINs with exception of CLIN 0001.
No

151.
RFP, Section L.6.2, Page L-34, When the estimated cost of any cost record equals of exceeds one million dollars or the same rationale supports multiple costs that together total one million dollars…

Question:  What is the definition of a cost record?  


Threshold of $1,000,000 is hereby deleted.  

The definition of a cost record is any document that reflects a method, approach, technique or process used to develop an estimate of cost such as, but not limited to, a labor estimate, material estimate (Bill of Materials) by use of Purchase Order, Subcontract, or Agreement from a single source, parametric model, catalog pricing, engineering model, analogy based on historical data,  an expert opinion that documents a cost that is used in developing a cost/price that the Government will be expected to pay in the course of a contractor preforming obligations under the ERA contract.
Yes

152.
RFP, Section L6.2.1, Additional Data for Prime and Section L6.2.2, Additional Data for Subcontractors.

Question:  The instructions appear to require the basis of estimates from both the Prime Contractor and from first (and second) tier subcontractors.  For a project of this size and scope, it is a fairly standard industry practice, and a best practice, to fully incorporate all team members into one seamless functional entity.  As such, our first (and second) tier subcontractors perform on the tasks as the Prime as part of an integrated team.  Therefore, preparing separate, duplicate BOEs for the Prime and subcontractors for the same effort is not a true reflection of the estimation approach.  

Request that the Government modify 6.2.2 to indicate that such documentation is only appropriate and applicable if the first (and second) subcontractors have completely self-contained, standalone tasks.
The prime is responsible for all submissions of cost estimations. Certification of subcontractor pricing must be the responsibility of the prime.  
No

153.
Reference Section, M 2.0:

Under what circumstances would you consider letting only one, rather than two, contract(s) as a result of this procurement?
The Government will not release this information.  This is a source selection activity and is not releasable to the Offerors. 
No

154.
RFP, Section M.3.4, Page M-3, In order to determine the evaluated Cost/Price, the Government will add the price the Offeror proposes for the base contract period (CLIN 0001) to the most probable costs of all the option periods and the proposed award fees.

Question:  Please clarify how the most probable costs will be determined.  Will a risk factor be added to the total proposed price for all option periods to determine most probable costs or is some other methodology to be applied.
This is a source selection activity and is not releasable to the Offerors.
No

155.
a) Is the solicitation's requirement for option year pricing to be used as a qualifier?  

b)
Isn't there a greater likelihood of a vendor's rates being compromised over the long time span between initial bidding and final price submission?
a)
Yes.

b) 
No, Section M of the RFP describes the evaluation criteria for Cost/Price factors.  Offerors’ are required to submit Cost/Price information in Volume IV and the government will provide adequate protection of the Offerors’ information.
No

156.
Reference:  NARA Enterprise Architecture, V. 2, Appendix B, NARA Technology Standards Profile:

Does NARA wish the contractor to adhere to each of these standards or does NARA provide them as guidance for the overall architecture effort?  Please clarify the intent and role of this document.
NARA provides these as guidance and any deviations from them require a waiver during the System Analysis and Design Phase.
No

157.
Reference: Target Release Paper, Table 6-2, pp. 8 - 17

May the offeror deviate from the activities schedule defined in the Increments Roadmap?  
Yes.  Offerors were provided the GFI Increments Roadmap, which is consistent with NARA’s performance objectives, to guide their development and deployment approach.  
No

158.
ConOps, v3.0:  Section 2.2, NARA Documentation, lists "ERA System Scope Mapped to Records Lifecycle BPR As-Is Model, March 27, 2003."  Is this document available?
No, the referenced analysis is not necessary for the Offerors’ use.
No

159.
Reference: Concept of Operations, p. 2, Section 1.2.1, Approach

Is the BPR information on the NARA ERA web site complete? It would appear that it would need to converge soon to provide a baseline for the Systems Analysis and Design phase. How much BPR activity can we expect and, accordingly, provide pricing for in the Systems Analysis and Design phase?
The Requirements Document is in alignment with the Phase 1 BPR results currently available on the website.  However, additional BPR efforts are underway and the successful Offerors will be expected to interface with this effort.  Any requirements changes will be under Configuration Management. 


No

160.
Are the answers to the Industry Questions on the ERA Draft RFP still valid?  (Are the revisions (ex. 25 & 26) a result of the Final RFP release)?
No.  
No

161.
Order of Precedence. Where the offeror finds conflicting information within the documents and references provided by NARA within and across multiple documents, how should we determine which piece of information takes precedence? Can the government provide an order of precedence that includes the RFP and all other referenced documents associated with the ERA acquisition?
NARA has provided guidance on precedence in the RFP. GFI documents are provided for informational purposes only.
No

162.
Timeline clarification – in general the years 2007, 2008, etc are used in many documents.  Please confirm that in each instance this is intended to mean the following:

2007 – Months 1-12 starting after IOC

2008 – Months 13-24 starting after IOC 

2009 – Months 25-36 starting after IOC

2010 – Months 37-48 starting after IOC

2011 – Months 49-60 starting after IOC
The timelines are intended to reference Calendar Year unless otherwise described.

No attempt was intended to correlate these to the Increments.
No

163.
To accommodate pre-planned holiday/vacation plans of the Contractor's proposal development staff, we would appreciate NARA's consideration for a two week extension in the Proposal due date from 1/28/04 to 2/11/04.
NARA will consider this request, but foresees no change in the due date at this time.  The due date was based on industry feedback received during the Prime System Integrator meetings on how long it will take for Offerors to submit proposals. NARA also considered the effects of the holidays. NARA has not recognized any significant issues in the questions and answers received to date, that require changing RFP requirements significantly, and therefore Offeror’s proposals need to be submitted on time.  Consideration for Q&A and Holiday Time was taken into consideration for the determination of providing 54 days rather than the stated 45 days.  
No

164.
While the proposal due date of 45 days from the date NARA issued the RFP seemed adequate, there were quite a few questions raised during the Bidder's Conference.  Additional questions will be posed to NARA through the question deadline of December 19.  Given the holiday and likely vacation schedule over the next few weeks, it seems unlikely that NARA will be able to issue complete answers before early January.  The holiday and vacation schedule for Government employees will also affect the bidder's ability to get timely responses for past performance purposes.  Given the complex nature of the solicitation, the many questions still to be answered, and the impact of NARA and other Government employees holiday and vacation schedules, we respectfully request 30 additional days to prepare and submit our proposal.
NARA will consider this request, but foresees no change in the due date at this time.  The due date was based on industry feedback received during the Prime System Integrator meetings on how long it will take for Offerors to submit proposals. NARA also considered the effects of the holidays. NARA has not recognized any significant issues in the questions and answers received to date, that require changing RFP requirements significantly, and therefore Offeror’s proposals need to be submitted on time.  Consideration for Q&A and Holiday Time was taken into consideration for the determination of providing 54 days rather than the stated 45 days.  
No

165.
We have been digesting your ERA Request for Proposal (RFP) and realize that providing you with a comprehensive, best value solution that is responsive to your requirements surrounding the Contract Work Breakdown Structure, the Performance Work Statement, the Contract Data Requirements List, the Integrated Plan, the Integrated Schedule, the detailed Bill of Materials, and the detailed Basis of Estimates will require a larger effort than the current submittal date of January 28, 2004, will allow. 

For these reasons we respectfully request that you consider extending the NARA ERA proposal submission due date to Friday, February 28, 2004, at 12:00pm Eastern Time.
NARA will consider this request, but foresees no change in the due date at this time.  The due date was based on industry feedback received during the Prime System Integrator meetings on how long it will take for Offerors to submit proposals. NARA also considered the effects of the holidays. NARA has not recognized any significant issues in the questions and answers received to date, that require changing RFP requirements significantly, and therefore Offeror’s proposals need to be submitted on time.  Consideration for Q&A and Holiday Time was taken into consideration for the determination of providing 54 days rather than the stated 45 days.
No

166.
Request for Extension of Due Date. Due to the very detailed requirements for costing and pricing, and the tight interaction between the technical, management, and pricing volumes, we respectfully request a 30-day extension for all but the Past Performance Volume. If NARA does grant an extension, please consider announcing it prior to Christmas.
NARA will consider this request, but foresees no change in the due date at this time.  The due date was based on industry feedback received during the Prime System Integrator meetings on how long it will take for Offerors to submit proposals. NARA also considered the effects of the holidays. NARA has not recognized any significant issues in the questions and answers received to date, that require changing RFP requirements significantly, and therefore Offeror’s proposals need to be submitted on time.  Consideration for Q&A and Holiday Time was taken into consideration for the determination of providing 54 days rather than the stated 45 days.  
No

167.
NARA indicated during the Bidder's Conference that the proposed due date was based upon the input of contractor's during the pre-proposal phase in response top the Draft RFP.  As the final RFP has significant changes from the draft RFP in the areas of Data Rights and intellectual property, additional requirements for lifecycle costing, an increase in overall CDRLs from 6 to 28 and the new requirement for a prototype, we request an extension of 30 days for the offerors response to this RFP.
NARA will consider this request, but foresees no change in the due date at this time.  The due date was based on industry feedback received during the Prime System Integrator meetings on how long it will take for Offerors to submit proposals. NARA also considered the effects of the holidays. NARA has not recognized any significant issues in the questions and answers received to date, that require changing RFP requirements significantly, and therefore Offeror’s proposals need to be submitted on time.  Consideration for Q&A and Holiday Time was taken into consideration for the determination of providing 54 days rather than the stated 45 days.  
No

168.
Here are some thoughts for changes to the ERA Requirements Document

1) Current Draft:

ERA1.5.10 The system shall provide the capability to destroy electronic records in accordance with DoD 5220.22-M

Suggested Change:

ERA1.5.10 The system shall provide the capability to destroy electronic records in accordance with DoD 5220.22-M or if data is encrypted onto disk, the encryption key must be destroyed.

2) Current Draft:

ERA12.11 The system shall store electronic records in a non-encrypted state

Suggested Change:

ERA12.11 The system shall store electronic records in a non-encrypted state or if encrypted, a software recovery tool shall be provided to ensure data access in the event the encryption hardware is unavailable

3) Current Draft:

ERA32.2 The system shall have no single point of failure

ERA32.2 The system shall have demonstrated availability greater than 99.5% average uptime.


No, the ERA requirements attempt to be as implementation independent as possible.  Any requirements suggestions that dictate specific implementations have been consistently rejected by the ERA program over time.

1) Use of DoD 5220.22-M is NARA policy and will not be changed for the ERA RFP.  Disk based encryption and key management is implementation specific and will not be included in the requirements.

2) The requirement for storing archival copies of records in a non-encrypted state has been addressed in previous questions and will not be changed.  

3) The ERA RD specifies availability requirements for specific services.  The single point of failure requirement is an important architectural design consideration that is discussed in ERA documentation and will not be modified. 
No

